
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Quality Services 
Committee  

 
 
 

Councillor E J Lampkin (Chairman) 
Councillor M I Peters (Vice-Chairman) 

 

Councillor C Angell Councillor S Johnston 
Councillor S H Brown Councillor P Kelly 
Councillor P F Coleman Councillor D E May 
Councillor M Davis Councillor Mrs A Muckle 
Councillor S East Councillor R S L Perfitt 
Councillor D A Hammock Councillor Mrs D J Stoate 
Councillor J A Hayes Councillor Mrs N C Wightman 
Councillor D E Hunnisett  

 
 
 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 

 
Tuesday 30 November 2010 

 
 

at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



 

 
QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  

AGENDA 
 

Tuesday 30 November 2010 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of interest Members may wish to make 
including the term(s) of the Grant of Dispensation(s) by the Standards 
Committee.  
 

 

3. Confirmation of the minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 
2010 (Pages 1 - 10) 

 

4. Urgent Items   

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are any 
urgent items and their position on the agenda.  
 

 

5. To consider references from other Committees (if any)   

6. FORWARD PLAN (Pages 11 - 12)  

 To consider any issues arising from the Forward Plan for the period 1 
December 2010 to 31 March 2011.  
 

 

7. Action Points Arising from the Committee Meeting held on 7 
September 2010 (Pages 13 - 18) 

ED 

 To review the list of action points from the Committee meeting held 
on 7 September 2010 and to consider whether any item should be 
referred to the next meeting for a more detailed discussion.  
 

 

8. Acacia Hall/Fairfield Pool Update (Pages 19 - 28) RD 

 This report further updates Members on the current position in 
relation to the Acacia Hall & Fairfield Pool facilities.  
 

 

9. Benefits Service - Progress against Improvement Plan (Pages 29 
- 34) 

SD 

 This report updates Members with the latest performance 
information for the Benefits service.  
 

 

10. Performance Updates (Pages 35 - 52) ED 

 This report presents to Members an update on managing  



 

performance information and presents Quarter 2 performance 
indicator outturns for 2010/11.  
 

11. Corporate Complaints 2010/11 (Pages 53 - 70) ED 

 This report provides Members with information on the corporate 
complaints received between 1 April 2010 and 31 October 2010.  
 

 

12. Quality Services Committee Work Plan (Pages 71 - 74) ED 

 This report sets out the Committee’s Work Plan.  
 

 

 



 

1 

D A R T F O R D  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L 
 

QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Quality Services Committee held on Tuesday 7 
September 2010 at 7.00 pm 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor E J Lampkin (Chairman) 
Councillor M I Peters (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Ms C Angell (Shadow Chairman) 
Councillor S H Brown 
Councillor S East 
Councillor D A Hammock 
Councillor J A Hayes 
Councillor S Johnston 
Councillor Mrs D J Stoate 
Councillor Mrs N C Wightman 
 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor P F Coleman 
Councillor M J Davis 
Councillor D E Hunnisett 
Councillor P Kelly 
Councillor D E May 
Councillor Mrs A Muckle 
Councillor R S L Perfitt 

 
ALSO PRESENT:   Councillor Mrs A D Allen 
   Mr B Qualey   -  Chairman of the Dartford  
        Borough Residents’ Forum 

 
External Officers 
 

Matthew Roberts -  Regional Director (South East), Parkwood     
                                    Leisure 
 

Dartford Borough Council Officers 
 

 Chris Brown – Management Analysis and 
Intelligence Manager 

 Frank Brown – Leisure Services Manager 
 Sue Cressall – Revenues and Benefits Manager 
 Peter Dosad – Head of Housing 
 Noelle Flaherty – Performance and Risk Officer 
 Adrian Gowan – Policy Advisor 
 Sheri Green – Strategic Director 
 Gillian Wheatcroft – Communications and Marketing 

Manager 
 

16. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M Davis, D E 
Hunnisett, P Kelly and Mrs A Muckle. 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 7 SEPTEMBER 2010 

 
 

2 

 
17. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Councillor J A Hayes declared a personal interest in agenda item 5(A), 
Reference from the Dartford Association of Parish and Town Council’s 29 
June 2010 – Darent Valley Hospital – Provision of Car Parking, as his wife 
works at the hospital.   
 

18. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 1 JUNE 
2010  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Quality Services Committee held on 1 
June 2010 be confirmed. 
 

19. URGENT ITEMS  
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

20. REFERENCE FROM DARTFORD ASSOCIATION OF PARISH AND TOWN 
COUNCILS (DAPTC) - 29 JUNE 2010: DARENT VALLEY HOSPITAL - 
PROVISION OF CAR PARKING INCLUDING FEES  
 
This report advised the Quality Services Committee of concerns that had 
been raised by Bean Parish Council via the forum of the Dartford Association 
of Parish and Town Councils (DAPTC), about the provision of car parking 
facilities at Darent Valley Hospital, including the question of car parking fees 
and the disbursement of that potential revenue stream to contribute to the 
running costs of the hospital.  
 
Members felt that it would be helpful to have a short briefing paper from the 
Development Control and Planning Managers outlining any proposals relating 
to car parking at the hospital or other planning issues. The Committee also 
noted that the hospital had a new Chief Executive and felt that it would be 
helpful to invite her to attend the Committee’s next meeting to discuss both 
car parking and the wider health agenda, including issues arising from the 
review of heath inequalities and the health policy agenda. The Chairman 
would liaise with the Policy Advisor over specific issues for discussion at that 
meeting. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
1. That a briefing paper be circulated to the Committee to update Members 

on any planning issues relating to Darent Valley Hospital including any 
proposals relating to car parking at the hospital; and  
 

2. That the Chief Executive of Darent Valley Hospital be invited to attend the 
next meeting of the Committee to discuss the concerns raised by the 

Agenda Item 3 Page 2



QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 7 SEPTEMBER 2010 

 
 

3 

Dartford Association of Parish and Town Councils relating to car parking 
and to discuss the wider health agenda. 

 
21. FORWARD PLAN  

 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the contents of the Forward Plan, for the period 1 September 2010 to 31 
December 2010, be noted. 
 

22. ACTION POINTS ARISING FROM THE COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 1 
JUNE 2010  
 
This report provided Members with an opportunity to review the list of action 
points arising from the Committee meeting held on 1 June 2010. It was noted 
that new Benefit Service guidance leaflets (action point 1) were almost ready 
to be released and it was agreed that copies of these would be sent to 
Members within the next three weeks. The Committee was advised that a 
date for the “summer” rough sleeper count (action point 2) had not been 
finalised as further information on the count methodology to be applied was 
still awaited from the Department of Communities and Local Government but 
was likely to take place in November. Members of the Committee would be 
notified of the date by email as soon as it had been agreed and details would 
also appear in the Members Information Bulletin. Members had been sent a 
separate response dealing with action points 3 and 4, relating to performance 
indicators NI 110 and LI PS11 respectively. Reports relating to action points 5 
(Council web site) and 6 (Acacia Hall/Fairfield Pool) appeared later in the 
agenda. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the list of action points arising from the Committee meeting held on 1 
June 2010 together with the additional information provided be noted. 
 

23. ACACIA HALL/FAIRFIELD POOL UPDATE  
 
This report provided a further update to Members on the current position in 
relation to the Acacia Hall and Fairfield Pool facilities. The Chairman 
welcomed Mr Matthew Roberts, Regional Director (South East) of Parkwood 
Leisure, to the meeting and thanked him for making internal notes of 
monitoring meetings and a Parkwood Leisure monthly Services Report 
available to Members for discussion. These items would allow for informed 
debate and provided assurance that issues of concern were being addressed. 
The Chairman also asked to be updated on the position on car parking at 
Acacia Hall, and, in relation to the Fairfield Pool, whether the repair to the 
water pump had been completed and would not be a long term concern and 
what action had been taken to prevent a repeat of staff unwittingly assisting in 
a theft from a locker. 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 3



QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 7 SEPTEMBER 2010 

 
 

4 

The Leisure Services Manager explained that Members comments on car 
parking at Acacia Hall from the last meeting were being considered and that 
various options were currently being looked at, including whether to make the 
car park a pay-and-display or pay-and-leave facility. However this was 
currently a work in progress and a further update would be provided at the 
next meeting.    In response to questioning he confirmed that 6 companies 
had applied for the Acacia Business Concession by the 1st September closing 
date [Post meeting note: the Leisure Services Manager subsequently advised 
that in fact 10 companies had applied for the concession]. In introducing Mr 
Roberts the Leisure Services Manager confirmed that a lot of progress had 
been made at Fairfield Pool on addressing customer’s concerns. 
 
Mr Roberts thanked the Committee for allowing him to attend the meeting and 
outlined the plans that Parkwood Leisure had to make improvements to the 
Fairfield Pool and the fabric of the buildings including refurbishment of the 
fitness centre, the changing rooms and the reception area. Mr Roberts 
confirmed that the problems with the pump and the consequent loss of water 
temperature had taken a few days to rectify due to the age of the pump and 
the lack of off-the-shelf parts for the repair but that there were no long term 
concerns about the pumping system. He also explained that a full review of 
procedures had been carried out following the particular locker theft outlined 
in the monthly report and that this should not happen again. Mr Roberts 
welcomed the renewal of the contract with the Council to operate Fairfield 
Pool and that the improvements to the fitness centre and the refurbishment 
proposals were already re-energising use of the facilities. Customers 
concerns were being addressed and there had been improvements to 
cleanliness and cleaning regimes were kept under regular review. It was 
recognised however that due to the age of the building a certain amount of 
wear and tear was inevitable and this was reflected in the appearance of the 
building, but the refurbishment would go a long way towards addressing this. 
It was accepted that the fabric of some much older swimming baths appeared 
in better condition but that this was because more modern centres were 
sometimes built to a lower specification with a shorter anticipated working life. 
Mr Roberts also clarified some of the leisure schemes and courses operated 
at the centre including the MEND scheme to promote healthy lifestyle. 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Roberts and the Leisure Services Manager for 
attending and updating the Committee.    
           
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted and that a further update on Acacia Hall and the 
Fairfield Pool be provided at the next meeting of the Committee. 
 

24. NEIGHBOURHOOD AGREEMENT UPDATE  
 
This report updated the Quality Services Committee on the progress that had 
been made and the impact of Neighbourhood Agreements across the 
Council’s Housing stock. Progress against the priorities agreed under the two 
existing Neighbourhood Agreements was reported by the Head of Housing. 

Agenda Item 3 Page 4



QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 7 SEPTEMBER 2010 

 
 

5 

The Committee noted that progress with the roll out of the Agreements had 
been slower than expected and that a third agreement planned for Temple Hill 
had not been agreed due to lack of community engagement and interest. It 
had been hoped that such an agreement would have promoted community 
involvement and could have resulted in the revival of the Residents 
Association in the area. The Committee noted the contribution that local Ward 
members already made within the Temple Hill community and the vital part 
that successful third sector organisations already operating in the area, such 
as Sure Start and the Living Well Centre, could make towards encouraging 
the support needed for creating a Neighbourhood Agreement. The Committee 
also heard that the Council now had a Resident Involvement Liaison Officer in 
place and able to take these issues forward and it was hoped that further 
progress would be made and this would be further enhanced as the Housing 
team roll out the ongoing consultation required in relation to the Housing 
Annual Report and local offers.     
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

25. BENEFITS SERVICE - PROGRESS AGAINST IMPROVEMENT PLAN  
 
The Committee considered a report which detailed the sustained 
improvement in the performance of the Benefits service and the good 
progress being made to meet the targets included in the Improvement Plan 
agreed by the Cabinet in April. Performance continued to be closely 
monitored by the Service Manager, Strategic Director and the Management 
Team and steps had been taken to clear the backlog of work. The targets for 
processing new claims were now being exceeded and targets for processing 
changes to details were close to being achieved. The Revenues and Benefits 
Manager highlighted the improvements in service performance and was 
confident that performance would match that of the Sevenoaks service by the 
time that the joint service was established. Members welcomed the improved 
performance and asked for staff to be informed of the Committee’s 
appreciation for their efforts in addressing performance issues. It was agreed 
that a short update would be provided following the release of the next 
quarterly performance outturns. In addition there would be a formal review of 
the transition to and operation of the new Joint Service and a progress report 
would be submitted to the Committee in September 2011. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the sustained improvement in performance of the Benefits service and 
progress against the Improvement Plan targets be noted and that a further 
report regarding the new Joint Revenue and Benefits service with Sevenoaks 
District Council be presented to the Quality Services Committee in September 
2011. 
 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 5



QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 7 SEPTEMBER 2010 

 
 

6 

26. WEBSITE UPDATE, PROGRESS SO FAR AND NEXT STEPS  
 
This report updated Members on the ongoing developments to the website 
and outlined the plans for the introduction of the new site. The 
Communications Manager informed Members of the methodology and action 
plan adopted by the steering group overseeing the project and progress 
against the plan including action already taken to achieve quick wins and the 
next steps to achieve roll out of the new web site in 2011. This included the 
procurement of a new Content Management System, piloting the web 
development with a single department to identify issues before rolling the 
model out across the Council. Members accepted that this was a work in 
progress and that considerable work would be needed to review and update 
over 3,000 web pages to ensure the currency of the content and chosen 
webstyle. The Committee sought clarification on how the web site would link 
with the corporate image and how departments would provide content. It was 
accepted that developing content would be reliant upon the co-operation of 
each department but that this should be facilitated by the new CMS and better 
training in web development. It was agreed that the Committee would receive 
a further update in November.          
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the progress made to improve the Council’s website be noted; 
 
2. That the website becomes one of the key drivers in delivering improved 

customer service; and  
 
3. That the Committee should receive a further progress report at its next 

meeting in November 2010. 
 

27. LOCAL CHILDREN'S TRUSTS  
 
The Committee was advised of changes to the arrangements for the delivery 
of services for children in Kent. In response to changing economic conditions 
the Kent Children’s Trust decided that services could best be delivered by 
creating local trust boards which were coterminous with District Boundaries 
and from October 2010 the 23 Local Children’s Service Partnerships created 
in 2008 would be replaced by 12 Local Children’s Trusts each managed by a 
Preventative Services Manager. Recently the Government had announced its 
intention to remove the duty on schools to co-operate through Children’s 
Trusts and the requirement on local authorities to set up Children’s Trust 
boards and to publish a joint Children and Young Persons Plan. The 
Government also intended to revoke the regulations underpinning the 
Children’s and Young People’s Plan and the statutory guidance on Children’s 
Trusts.   
 
The Committee was informed that the Kent Children’s Trust intended to 
continue with the current partnership arrangements even if the statutory 
elements were removed but that the removal of the statutory guidance would 
also allow greater freedom for the partnerships to reflect local issues. 

Agenda Item 3 Page 6



QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 7 SEPTEMBER 2010 

 
 

7 

Members expressed strong support for partnership working to deliver services 
for children and hoped that the removal of the statutory requirements would 
not threaten children’s safety. The Committee also noted the strong support 
from schools in the Dartford area for partnership working on children’s 
services. Councillor Mrs Allen informed the Committee of the importance 
attached by Kent County Council to child welfare and also of the invaluable 
contribution made by the Youth Council in Dartford, which had been tasked 
with assisting in writing the Children’s and Young Persons Plan. Members 
welcomed and endorsed the work of the Youth Council in Dartford.   The 
Committee was also advised that Nick Fenton, the Preventative Services 
Manager for Dartford, had agreed to attend the Committee’s meeting in March 
2011 to discuss the new arrangements for Children’s Services.  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the changes that have been made to the Local Children’s Partnership 
arrangements be noted. 
 

28. PERFORMANCE UPDATES  
 
This report presented an update on managing performance information and 
the first quarter performance indicator outturns for 2010/11. The report also 
highlighted the changes being made to the national performance monitoring 
regime by the coalition Government and highlighted the uncertainties about 
the future of the national performance indicator set. It was however likely that 
there would be fewer national indicators although this would not prevent the 
Council continuing to monitor performance against these indicators where this 
was felt to be meaningful.  
 
Members welcomed the new bar chart graphic summarising “traffic light” 
performance and sought clarification on performance against specific 
indicators: 
 
FRPI-8 Sundry Debtors: Members asked whether the exercise to strip out 
underlying long term irrecoverable debt from Sundry debtors had begun as 
requested by the Audit Board as it was felt that this could distort performance 
against the target. The Head of Housing confirmed that this was taking place 
for housing debt but could not confirm whether this was also taking place in 
other service areas. 
 
LI ET7(E1.4a)- Average number of days individual unauthorised 
encampments on Council Land: Members expressed surprise that this was 
deemed to be under-performing as the procedure and turnaround described in 
the narrative seemed very efficient. The Strategic Director confirmed that the 
Council rarely had an issue as it had strong control over Council land and took 
rapid action wherever necessary. However the process for removing 
unauthorised encampments was very prescribed and the turnaround time for 
removal depended in part on which day of the week the encampment was 
made. Members wondered whether the target should be revised accordingly 
and suggested that Management Team should review this. 

Agenda Item 3Page 7



QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 7 SEPTEMBER 2010 

 
 

8 

 
LI HS5 (BV2 12) Average time taken to re-let local authority housing: 
Disappointment was expressed that the target for re-letting housing was not 
being achieved. The Head of Housing explained that this was because of a 
combination of a large number of voids and some carry across from the 
previous contractor. It was always expected that the new contractor would 
take a few months to get up to speed and management action was taken to 
deal with the performance dip with the target being achieved in August and 
expected to be met over the full year. 
 
PDPI-11 Town Centre Expenditure: It was noted that this underspend had 
arisen due to the difficulty in recruiting a Town Centre Administrator. Officers 
were still actively looking to appoint to this post. 
  
CSPI-1-3 Customer Services Performance: Disappointment was expressed 
about underperformance as a result of problems associated with the Mitel 
upgrade. It was also noted that Customer Services had taken responsibility for 
dealing with front-end benefits enquiries for which the volume had been very 
high and that it was hoped that the implementation of a “Quick Queue” for 
Benefit and Council Tax enquiries would assist in processing these 
expeditiously. The Committee hoped that performance in the next quarter 
would better reflect the efforts of Customer Services staff to deliver good 
services to the public or would expect to be informed of measures to restore 
performance to target level if this was not the case. 
  
NI 192 Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and 
composting: Members expressed interest in the progress of the new garden 
waste collection scheme. It was agreed that an update would be provided as 
part of the Action Points item for the next meeting detailing the take up of the 
scheme. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the contents of the main report and the first quarter performance 
indicator outturns for 2010/11, contained within Appendix A to the report, be 
noted. 
 

29. CORPORATE COMPLAINTS 2010/11  
 
This report provided Members with information on corporate complaints 
processed between 1 April 2010 and 31 July 2010 and the status of each 
complaint. It was noted that one complaint was currently being investigated by 
the Ombudsman but had not been submitted through the Council’s complaints 
process and not been subject to investigation by the Council. The remit of the 
Quality Services Committee and the Standards Committee to review 
complaints was discussed and it was agreed that it was important for the 
Quality Services Committee to review complaints to assist with monitoring 
service performance.  
 
 

Agenda Item 3 Page 8



QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 7 SEPTEMBER 2010 

 
 

9 

 RESOLVED: 
 
That the corporate complaints information provided at Appendix A to the 
report be noted. 
 

30. QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE WORK PLAN  
 
This report set out the Quality Services Committee’s work plan and asked 
Members to suggest further items for consideration. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that the following additional items had been 
requested during the meeting and would be added to the Work Plan: 
 

• A further update on Acacia Hall/Fairfield Pool (November 2010 and 
March 2011); 

• A further update on the Council’s web site development (November 
2010); and 

• Waste and Recycling update (March 2011) 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the Work Plan, as amended, be noted. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 8.15 pm 
 

  
 
 

Councillor E J Lampkin 
CHAIRMAN 

Agenda Item 3Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



1 December 2010 - 31 March 2011 
FORWARD PLAN 

1 of 2 

 

TITLE OF REPORT AND 
BRIEF SUMMARY OF 
MATTER TO BE DECIDED 

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD 
WITHIN WHICH 
THE DECISION 
WILL BE 
TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM 

WHO IS TO BE CONSULTED 
BEFORE TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR 

Draft Statement of 
Licensing Policy 
 
This report asks Members to 
approve the draft Statement 
of Licensing Policy following 
consultation with the 
persons/bodies listed in 
section 5(3) of the Licensing 
Act 2003 with a view to 
comments being considered 
by the Cabinet on 25 
November 2010 prior to 
adoption of the Statement of 
Licensing Policy by the 
General Assembly of the 
Council on 13 December 
2010.  
 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
25 Nov 2010 
 
General 
Assembly of the 
Council 
13 Dec 2010 
 

The following bodies/persons listed 
in section 5(3) of the Licensing Act 
2003 will be consulted in 
accordance with national guidance: 
 

• The Chief Police Officer 

• The Fire and Rescue 
Authority 

• Persons/bodies 
representative of local 
holders of premises licences 

• Persons/bodies 
representative  of local 
holders of club premises 
certificates 

• Persons/bodies 
representative of local 
holders of personal licences 

• Persons/bodies 
representative of 
businesses and residents in 
the area  

None. 
 

Joanne Philpott 
Senior Licensing  Officer 
Tel: 01322 343024 
joanne.philpott@dartford.gov.uk 

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 6
P

a
g
e
 1

1



 

2 of 2 
 

TITLE OF REPORT AND 
BRIEF SUMMARY OF 
MATTER TO BE DECIDED 

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD 
WITHIN WHICH 
THE DECISION 
WILL BE 
TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM 

WHO IS TO BE CONSULTED 
BEFORE TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR 

Core Strategy Submission 
 
Consultation on the Core 
Strategy Proposed 
Submission Document has 
given rise to a range of 
representations. This report 
proposes amendments which 
address some of these 
representations. None of the 
proposed amendments are 
considered to change the 
substance of the Proposed 
Submission Core Strategy, 
which was agreed by Cabinet 
and GAC. They are, 
however, intended to 
strengthen the Core Strategy 
and improve the chances of a 
‘sound’ verdict at 
Examination. Agreed 
amendments will be 
submitted to the Planning 
Inspector alongside the 
Published Core Strategy, to 
be considered as part of the 
Examination.  

Cabinet 
27 Jan 2011 
 
General 
Assembly of the 
Council 
31 Jan 2011 
 

The Core Strategy has been 
developed with the involvement of 
the LDF Members Working Group.  
Earlier drafts have been agreed by 
Cabinet and GAC.  It has also 
been subject to several rounds of 
consultation with local residents, 
voluntary organisations and key 
stakeholders.  No further formal 
consultation is proposed at this 
stage. 

None. 
 

Teresa Ryszkowska 
Planning Policy Manager 
Tel: 01322 343631 
teresa.ryszkowska@dartford.gov.uk 

A
g

e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a

g
e
 1

2



 

QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2010 

 

ACTION POINTS ARISING FROM COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
7 SEPTEMBER 2010 

 
1. Summary 
 

1.1   To review the list of action points arising from the Committee meeting held on 7 
September 2010 and to consider whether any item should be referred to the 
next meeting for a more detailed discussion.  

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That the list of action points arising from the Committee meeting held on 7 

September 2010 be noted and that the Committee consider whether any item 
requires a report to be submitted to the next meeting, for more detailed 
discussion. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. List of Action Points 

No. Item Responsible Officer 
1 Whilst considering an item on the Benefits service at 

their meeting on 1 June 2010 Members had been 
advised that the format and content of the claim forms 
and guidance leaflets used by claimants was currently 
undergoing review in consultation with other agencies. 
Members had asked to be provided with copies of the 
new forms and leaflets once they had been finalised. 
 
Electronic versions of the leaflets have been sent to all 
members and a set of leaflets have been placed in the 
Members Area. 
 

Sue Cressall 

2 At the Quality Services Committee meeting held on 1 
June 2010 Members were advised that a ‘summer’ 
rough sleeper count was being arranged for 8 
September 2010. Subsequently it was decided to 
postpone the count pending receipt of fresh guidance 
from the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (CLG) on the new counting methodology 
to be applied. 
 
A rough sleeper count was finally arranged for 2.00 
am on Thursday 21 October 2010 and, as agreed, all 
members of the Quality Services Committee were 
invited to take part. 
 
The count did not locate any rough sleepers in 
Dartford. 
 

Peter Dosad 

Agenda Item 7Page 13



 

QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2010 

 
3 At the meeting on 7 September 2010 the Committee 

considered a reference item from the Dartford 
Association of Parish and Town Councils raising 
concerns about car parking issues at Darent Valley 
Hospital. Members had asked for a short briefing 
paper to be prepared describing any proposals 
relating to car parking facilities at the hospital or other 
planning issues. 
 
A response from the Development Control Manager 
was sent to all members of the Committee. 
 
The Committee had also asked that the new Chief 
Executive of Darent Valley Hospital be invited to 
attend a future meeting of the Committee to discuss 
the wider health agenda, including issues arising from 
the review of health inequalities and the health policy 
agenda. 
 
The Policy Advisor sent an invite, together with a copy 
of the Quality Services Committee’s Working Group 
report on Health Inequality In Dartford, to the new 
Chief Executive of Darent Valley Hospital, Sue Acott, 
who has confirmed that she will be available to attend 
the March 2011 meeting. 
 

Alec Lauder 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adrian Gowan 
 

4 As requested by the Committee at its meeting on 7 
September 2010 a further report updating Members 
on the ongoing performance of the Revenues and 
Benefits service has been included as part of this 
meeting’s agenda. 
 
Members have also asked that full report on the 
performance of the Joint Revenues and Benefits 
Service be provided to the Committee in September 
2011. This has been included in the Committee’s draft 
Work Plan for 2011/12.  
 

Sheri Green 

5 Members requested to be updated about the options 
for future car parking arrangements at Acacia Hall. It 
was agreed that the Leisure Services Manager would 
provide an update at the next meeting as part of a 
wider update on progress at Acacia Hall and the 
Fairfield Pool which appears later in this agenda. 
 

Frank Brown 

6 At its meeting on 7 September 2010 the Committee 
asked that they be provided with a further update on 
the ongoing review of the Council’s website. A status 
report, written by the Communications and Marketing 
Manager, has been attached at Appendix A. 

Gillian Wheatcroft 

Agenda Item 7 Page 14



 

QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2010 

 
7 As requested by the Committee at its meeting on 7  

September 2010 a further report updating Members 
on outstanding issues relating to the Acacia Hall and 
Fairfield Pool has been included as part of this 
meeting’s agenda. 
 

Frank Brown 

8 Members were advised on 7 September of changes to 
the delivery arrangements for Children’s services in 
Kent including the establishment of 12 Local 
Children’s Trusts, including one for the Dartford area. 
Members were also informed that the Preventative 
Services Manager responsible for the Dartford Trust 
had agreed to attend the Committee’s meeting in 
March 2011 to discuss the new arrangements. This 
has been added to the Committee’s Work Plan for 
March 2011 and Mr Fenton will be invited to attend.   
   

Adrian Gowan 

9 At the meeting on 7 September Members had asked 
that the target associated with performance indicator 
LI ET7(E1.4a) – Average number of days individual 
unauthorised encampments on Council Land – be 
reviewed. 
 
Both Cabinet and the Management Team had 
confirmed that the target should remain the same as it 
showed that the Council was committed to taking 
rapid action against unauthorised encampments. They 
had added that the timing details associated with any 
action taken should continue to be highlighted in the 
notes section of this performance indicator. 
 

Sheri Green 

10 At the meeting on 7 September 2010 Members had 
expressed interest in the progress of the Council’s 
new garden and waste collection scheme and had 
asked for an update on the level of take up. 
 
The Waste and Recycling Manager has provided the 
following information: 
 
As of 1 November there were 1,763 properties 
participating in the new garden waste collection 
service, with about 20 new customers being added to 
this each week. The Council has recently been 
awarded funding from WRAP for further publicity and 
advertising in order to reach the anticipated 5,000 
customers. This publicity will go out early in the new 
year. Between 10 and 13 tonnes of garden waste are 
being collected each week for composting which 
meets estimates.  
 

David Thomas 

Agenda Item 7Page 15



 

QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2010 

 
 
 
 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
To provide high quality services that reflect public aspirations and 
demonstrate improvement. 
 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 
 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications None  

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None  

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 

 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
Not applicable. 
 

7. Appendices 
 
Appendix A – An update on the ongoing review of the Council’s website 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
Quality Services Minutes and 
Action Sheet 7 September 
2010 

 Alan Stoneham 
(01322) 343330 

Member 
Services 

N/A 

 

Agenda Item 7 Page 16



 
QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

30 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

APPENDIX A 

 
WEBSITE 

 
 
1. Background 
 

A report was submitted to this Committee on the 7 September 2010, 
outlining the proposals for a new Content Management System (CMS), 
which forms the basis of the website and an update was requested for 
this meeting. 

 
2. Update 
 

This initiative is being progressed as a joint project by the four district 
Councils in West Kent (Dartford; Gravesham; Sevenoaks; and 
Tonbridge & Malling) and since the last Report to this Committee, work 
has been ongoing with the evaluation of the CMSs provided by 
different suppliers.  Tonbridge & Malling is leading on the procurement 
of the package, which will be hosted by that authority.  This 
arrangement provides value for money for all the Councils. 

 
As this project moves into the implementation stage, Management 
Team proposed that the Working Group be reformed, to concentrate on 
project management and implementation. 
 
Due to the breadth of the service offered by the Waste and Recycling 
Service (Advice; Collection Days; Missed Collection; Garden Waste 
Service etc) this activity will be used as a pilot to trial the new system.  
This work will then assist other managers when they are looking to 
transfer their information to the new arrangements. 
 
The target date for the website is June 2011 and considerable work will 
be required in the run up to this date. 

 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



 
QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

30 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

ACACIA HALL/FAIRFIELD POOL UPDATE  
 

1. Summary 
 

1.1 This report further updates Members on the current position in relation to the 
Acacia Hall & Fairfield Pool facilities. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That the Committee note the report. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 
  Update on Performance Indicators 
 

3.1 Since the last meeting, the performance indicators have highlighted 
that the Fitness Centre continues to be extremely popular and the 
membership is 23 members above target, with the average direct debit 
spend still above target at £29.70.  As a result of increased marketing, 
the total number of functions at Acacia Hall from April to July was 89 
against a target of 79. 

 
3.2 The sports hall peak use indicator has shown a steady increase over 

the past 5 months.  
 

 Acacia Site Update 
 
3.3 Further to the last meeting, the following actions have been or will be 

taken: 
 

i) the tendering for a single operator to run the bar, ballroom, 
marquee, Darent Suite and Coach House was inconclusive. 
Alternative options for seeking commercial partners are being 
identified and recommendations will be made to Cabinet as soon as 
possible; 

 
ii) The conversion of the former members’ car park to a pay-and-

display car park facility for public use will be taken forward as soon 
as the management of the commercial areas has been agreed;  

 
iii) In an effort to increase public awareness of the Acacia Hall facilities, 

a review of the website was carried out and the new updated 
website became fully operational at the beginning of October. 

 
 

Fairfield Pool Update 
 
3.4 The following update has been received from Parkwood Leisure 

Management: 

Agenda Item 8Page 19



 
QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

30 NOVEMBER 2010 
 
 

i)  Fitness Suite - The refurbishment of the Fitness Suite was 
completed at the end of August 2010 with the official launch on 4 
October 2010. The improvements include state of the art new 
equipment, full redecoration, new flooring, new televisions and 
window tints completed to prevent glare. 

 
ii) Centre Refurbishment - Parkwood Leisure and DBC have appointed 

the Project Manager for the works that will incorporate the 
Reception Foyer (to include a DDA dropdown desk), Changing 
Room Corridor, three Changing rooms, W.C.'s and Showers. The 
refurbishment will incorporate a full redecoration of the areas, 
flooring and lighting. The process for the opportunity to tender for 
this project will commence from the beginning of November. 

 

iii) Friends of FPLC - The Centre's committee works as a consultation 
mechanism to monitor standards and quality through the facility 
users and Councillors who attend. A meeting of this group took 
place on 19 October 2010 and minutes have been available to 
members in advance of this meeting. 

 
iv) Cleanliness – As previously highlighted in the September Quality 

Services Committee report and also in the October Scrutiny 
Committee report it was acknowledged that there had been a 
marked improvement in the standards presented at the Centre. This 
has been based on the visits of DBC Officers, Members, the 
Friends of Fairfield Pool group and by the customers via the 
customer comments mechanism and via monthly reports. 

 
v) Management Update - As of the 4 October 2010, Lee Clark has 

been seconded to the position of HR Manager within Parkwood 
Leisure for a six month period, but will still remain responsible for 
the project management of the planned refurbishments. Tara Harris 
has been seconded to fill the role of Centre Manager at FPLC for 
this period of time, overseeing all operational and financial aspects 
of the facility. 

 
vi) The attached report from Parkwood Leisure includes updates on the 

following areas: 
a) Throughput Figures 
b) Activity Usage 
c) Customer Comments – Cleanliness 
d) Customer Comments – Maintenance 

 
 

Fairfield Pool Customer Satisfaction Monitoring 
 
3.5 The most recent monthly report produced by Parkwood Leisure 

Management is attached to this report as Appendix A , and any copies 

Agenda Item 8 Page 20



 
QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

30 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

of any recent meetings involving DBC Management and Friends of 
Fairfield Pool have been circulated separately to Members.  

  

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

 
Not Applicable 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None specifically. Provision has been made in 
both the revenue and capital budgets to meet the 
Council’s obligations. 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment No risks 

 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 Not applicable  
 
7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Parkwood Leisure Monthly Management Report 
 

. 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Documents consulted Date / 

File Ref 
Report Author 
 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 
 

  Frank Brown 
(01322) 343472 

Regeneration 
 
Leisure 
Services 

N/A 

 

Agenda Item 8Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



  

  

APPENDIX A 

 

 

Little Bowbrook                    Tel: 01299 253 400 

Walton Road                        Fax:01299 253 444 
Hartlebury 
Worcs 
DY10 4JA 

  

SERVICES MONTHLY REPORTSERVICES MONTHLY REPORTSERVICES MONTHLY REPORTSERVICES MONTHLY REPORT    

Report for the month of October 2010 
 

Agenda Item 8Page 23



  

1          

1)  Introduction             

The following report comprises the operations management report from Parkwood Leisure Limited for 

Fairfield Pool and Leisure Centre (FPLC) for the period of October 2010.  

2)  Executive Summary         

 
The Centre has displayed the refurbishment boards in the Reception Foyer to obtain customer 
and staff feedback.  All feedback has been received and the Project Manager quotes have also 
been received. Frankhams have been appointed as the Project Manager for the works. 
 
There were 43 customer comments throughout October 2010, following our improved approach 
of communicating with customers more effectively to understand any comments regarding the 
Centre. There were 25 positive comments in the period of October 2010.  The main area for 
complaint was the Spa being out of action. 
 
 

Quest 
 
On 29 March 2010 the Centre had a maintenance cycle for Quest.  This was a one-day visit to 
ascertain how the Centre has progressed since the initial visit in August 2008.  The assessor 
stated that we are approximately a 71%-72% Centre with the potential to move up at least 2%.  
The Centre has received the report and has compiled an action plan. 
 
At present Quest have gone into administration and therefore the Quest assessment has been 
delayed until a time at which the accreditation is back in operation. 
 
The following Internal audits were completed in October 2010: 
 

• Customer relations, marketing & Web 

• Staffing 
 

 
Health & Safety 
 
Health & Safety work plan for October; 
 

• Full food & beverage risk assessment 

• Maintenance inspection of spin bikes 

• ROSPA Inspection on soft play equipment 
 
The Health & Safety Action plan points completed: 
 

• Rules to be displayed for slide usage in Teaching Pool 

• Crèche open & close checklist to be re-instated 

• Health & Safety responsibilities to be more visible for staff  

• Risk reduction plan to be implemented 

• Manual Handling assessments to be reassessed  

• Fire notices to be refreshed  

• VDU assessments to be updated 
 

 

Agenda Item 8 Page 24



  

 - 2 - 

 
 

3)  Service Provision             

3.1   Availability              

The teaching pool was unavailable from Monday 4 October - Tuesday 5 October 2010 due to the seal 

being damaged between the teaching pool pump and filtration system, and an item partially blocking 

the pump. 

The Spa has been taken out of action on 31 August 2010 due to the leaks within the Spa Plant Room.     

3.2   Security           

There were not any reported incidents relating to security concerns at FPLC for the month of October 

2010. 

 

3.3 Energy Management and Environmental Management systems              
 

FPLC continues to monitor its utility consumption to highlight the need for reduction in usage, where 
appropriate.  The electricity and gas readings are taken on a daily basis. 
 
The objectives set for the year is to aim to reduce electricity consumption by 3%. One of the ways in 
which we aim to achieve this, is to incorporate a lighting strategy, which will ensure lights that are not 
required, are always turned off.  “Turn off after use” signs are to be placed above all light switches and 
electrical appliances, and vending timers to be implemented on all machines. 
 
Following our EMS audit, we received three non-conformances for site which where, One for no yearly 
objective setting, and the other two in relation to out of date waste transfer notes, and some waste 
management licences not being on file. All non-conformances have been rectified and are waiting to be 
signed off as complete. 
 
In relation to the sites DEC, FPLC is currently rated as a C.  Recent utility readings have, been sent out 
to be analysed to establish our new grading for the new DEC, which is now due. 
 

 
3.4 Maintenance          
 
 
The bollard at the front of the building was previously damaged as a result of a delivery driver reversing 
into it. We have recently received payment for the works, which are due to take place next week. 
 
The compensated heating pumps that supply the radiators have now been repaired and refitted by 
Kent Rebos. 
 
The spa is currently out of action due to the pipe work leaking within the spa plant room. Theobalds 
came and pressure tested the spa on 28 October 2010, which identified various leaks from most of the 
pipe work. We are currently awaiting a full survey report from Theobalds along with quotes for the 
works, which will take between 1-2 weeks to receive. Once this information is received, it will be 
forwarded onto DBC for discussion. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8Page 25



  

 - 3 - 

 

3.5 Cleaning 
 
The cleaning schedule has been reviewed and discussed in the weekly management meeting. A 
new matrix system has been completed to ensure cleaning trends are identified and cleaned on a 
regular basis.  
 
The cleaning matrix is efficient as it provides a timescale for each staff member to complete a 
specific cleaning job, by a certain time. 
 
 Cleaning specification for each area is available staff are aware of the standards of cleaning 
required for each job 

3.6 Grounds Maintenance 
 
Daily litter picking of the car park and surrounding areas continue to be carried out. The main area for 
this time of year is the removal of leaves from both grass verges and all pathways. 
 
Glendale currently operates the Grounds Maintenance contract. 
 
There has been an improvement to the Grounds since the introduction of Glendale.  The staff are also 
cleaning the Grounds on a regular basis. 
 

3.7 Pool Water Quality          

Water testing sheets have been reviewed to ensure parameter levels are present. This will provide 
guidance as to what action should be taken and at what stage. 

The Centre Manager reviews the water tests from the previous week on a Monday morning and is 
discussed during the weekly Management Team meeting 

The monthly inspections of bacteriological water testing levels were completed for the Main Pool, 
Teaching Pool on 25 October 2010. The results of October’s water inspection did not show any 
problems for either pool. 

4.  Health and Safety Management         
 

FPLC hosted a National Pool Lifeguard Qualification training session on the first Monday of the month. 

 

As part of Parkwood Leisure’s Health and Safety Work Plan for 2010, FPLC, where applicable, 

performed their respective tasks during the period of October: 

 

• Full Food & Beverage Risk assessment 

• Machine maintenance of spin bikes 

• ROSPA Inspection 
 

 

There were 6 accidents in total for the period of October 2010.  There were no potential trends with 

these accidents. 

 

There was no RIDDORS for the month of October 2010. 

 

There was 1 incident in October 2010.  

 

Agenda Item 8 Page 26



  

 - 4 - 

The accidents/incidents have been completed in the new template, which measures against usage; 

October usage was 18581. 

 

 

5. Customer Relations – Customer Care, Satisfaction, Customer Feedback 

 
There were 43 comments regarding FPLC, these were comprised of letters and customer comment 
cards and emails.  All other emails were enquiries for programming. 
 
There were 25 positive comments in October 2010, the main items were: 

 

• Positive staffing comments - 4 

• Refurb positives (Fitness Suite)  - 4 

• Pool relative positive comments – 5 

• Spin classes – 3 

• Childrens Parties - 6 

• Please see customer comment analysis for further information. 
 
 
The main areas of complaint in October 2010 were as follows: 

 

• Spa being out of use - 6 

• Diving board being out of use - 2 

• Cleanliness and smell of changing rooms - 3 

• Please see customer comment analysis for further information. 
 

6.  Marketing, Programming, PR and Customer Communication    
 
In October 2010, FPLC had an article in the local new shopper, which focused on centre improvements 
to cleanliness and maintenance. 

 
FPLC is drafting a press release for November 2010 in relation to a customer’s positive experience 
since joining the gym here at FPLC, and how it has benefited her. 
 
The Centre has displayed the investment boards within the Reception Foyer and has requested views 
and ideas from the customers and staff.  Customer forms are located at Reception for people to submit 
their ideas as to what is required at the Centre.  The Marketing department have emailed a copy of the 
form to all customers that have email addresses on the system. 
 
In October 2010 there was a one-day promotion called “Frightening Offers”. For one day only, 
customers were able to join our expressions membership, and pay only £15 until December 2010. The 
customer did not have to pay a joining fee nor did they need to make any interim payment other that 
the initial £15. 
 
 For October 2010 we exceeded our sales target by achieving 51 sales for the month. 
 
Parkwood leisure is working towards promoting bookings made online. In order to attract customers to 
this methods of booking, we will be promoting various offers, which will only be available for those 
customers that have booked online. 
 
 Novembers offer will be a squash court price reduction during our quieter periods. This will be 
reviewed next year. 
 

Agenda Item 8Page 27



  

 - 5 - 

 Parkwood Leisure are currently working on an action plan to promote FPLC to increase usage.  The 
action plan was created to promote the installation of the new Fitness Suite and the refurbishment of 
the following areas: 
 

• Reception Foyer 

• Three Changing Rooms 

• Changing Room Corridor 

• WC’s and Toilets 
 

 
 

7. Community and Sport Development Initiatives     

 

Parkwood Leisure is continuing to develop the under 16-target group with activities such as Teen gym 

and Teen circuits. 

MEND is a 10 week course run at FPLC, which focuses on lifestyle changes for obese children ages 7-

13years. Due to low participation levels, the next course will be running in the New Year. 

FPLC are keen to look at promoting disability usage within the centre, and are currently in discussions 

with DBC and our sports development officer to try and arrange BOCCIA sessions. BOCCIA is a sport 

specifically designed for people with a severe physical disability, and is a similar to an adapted version 

of bowls. 

 

Agenda Item 8 Page 28



 
QUALITY SERVICES 

30 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

BENEFITS SERVICE – PROGRESS AGAINST IMPROVEMENT 
PLAN 
 
 
1. Summary 
 

The report updates Members with the latest performance information for the  
Benefits service. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Members note the sustained improvement in performance of the 
Benefits service and progress against the Improvement Plan targets. 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. Following underperformance of the Benefits services due to a 
combination of unprecedented workloads caused by the recession 
and long term sickness within the Benefits Team, Management Team 
authorised a short term injection of additional resources to assist in 
dealing with the backlog of work and in April 2010 Members agreed 
an Improvement Plan that set future targets to ensure substantial and 
sustained improvement in service levels.    

 
3.2. Progress against the Improvement Plan has since been reported 

regularly to Members with the last detailed reports having been 
submitted to Quality Services on 7 September and Cabinet on 25 
November 2010.  The improvement achieved has been significant 
and is sustained. 

 
3.3. The service manager and the Strategic Director continue to receive 

comprehensive statistical information weekly with Management Team 
retaining an overview of performance trends.  

 
3.4. Appendix A shows the improvement in performance over the past 

year together with current performance against the Improvement Plan 
targets. All aspects of performance meet, or are close to meeting the 
targets set. Where they are available Department for Work and 
Pensions (DWP) figures have also been shown. These are the 
definitive figures for performance but there is a considerable time-lag 
before they are published. DWP has just published 2010/11 Quarter 1 
statistics whereas Dartford has the Quarter 2 figures available. All 
days quoted are calendar days, not working days.  

 
3.5. In summary, and using Dartford figures for consistency, the average 

no. days to process a new claim has reduced from 50 days in Quarter 
2 2009/10 to 22 days in Quarter 2 2010/11 and average no. days to 
process a change in details (CID) has reduced from 42 days in 
Quarter 2 2009/10 to 11 days in Quarter 2 2010/11. Although the 

Agenda Item 9Page 29



 
QUALITY SERVICES 

30 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

  

percentage of new claims and changes processed within 14 days of 
receipt of all necessary information (claim complete) is slightly below 
target; at 89% against a target of 90%, it is reassuring to know that 
the average time to process a new claim, once complete, is less than 
7 days.  

 
3.6. Workload has not yet returned to pre-recession levels or patterns and 

although currently contained, continues to challenge service 
resources. However, efforts to sustain performance continue in the 
context of the project to introduce a joint Revenues and Benefits 
service with Sevenoaks District Council and this project remains on 
schedule. Service levels for the joint service were agreed based upon 
a balance of customer expectation and service capacity and cost. 
Targets in the Improvement Plan were therefore set so as to ensure 
common performance standards across the two authorities in 
advance of the establishment of a joint team. Current performance is 
broadly equivalent.  Both authorities will be under pressure to 
maintain performance during the transition to the joint service. 

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 The Corporate Plan includes the Council’s aim to provide high quality services 

that reflect public aspirations and demonstrate improvement. 
 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

 
Financial Implications 

All measures taken to date have been 
funded from existing service budgets. 
There are no financial implications as a 
result of this report. 

Legal Implications As set out in the body of the report 
Staffing Implications As set out in the report and appendix 

Administrative Implications None 
Risk Assessment There is a risk that a larger than 

anticipated increase in workload or an 
unexpected loss of processing capacity 
will again lead to a build up of work. The 
accurate and timely performance 
information now available will enable 
injection of additional resources to 
compensate, should this be necessary. 
 
There is a risk that the necessary work 
to create the joint service will detract 
from delivering the day-to-day service, 
or vice versa. Careful project planning 
and monitoring together with thoughtful 
use of project contingency will mitigate 
this risk. 

Agenda Item 9 Page 30



 
QUALITY SERVICES 

30 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

  

  
6. Appendices 

 
Appendix A Performance  
  

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Documents 
consulted 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 12.11.10  Sheri Green 
01322 343125 

Benefits 
Strategic 

Not 
applicable 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2010 

 

 

               Appendix A 

Performance  
 

 New Claims 
Ave.  
Processing 
Days 

CID Ave. 
Processing 
Days  

% processed 
within  
14 Days of claim 
complete 

% processed 
within  
50 Days of claim 
receipt  

 Target  Actual Target  Actual Target Actual Target Actual 
By end of:  DBC DWP  DBC DWP  New 

Claims 
CID  New 

Claims 
CID 

Q1 2009/10  44 42  27 24  60 62    
Q2  50 47  42 39  59 60    
Q3  45 44  21 20  60 66    
Q4  31 30  12 11  62 69    
March 2010 26 23 22 13 5 5  65 74    
Q1 2010/11 24 22 21 12 13 13 85 90 85 95 97 97 
Q2  22  22  11  11  90  89 89 95 99 98 
Q3 21   10   95   95   
Q4 21   10   100   95   
2010/11 YTD 
Cumulative 
Ave. 

 22   12   88 87  98 97 

 

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 9
P

a
g
e
 3

3



P
a

g
e
 3

4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 
QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

30 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

PERFORMANCE UPDATES 
 
 

1. Summary 
 
To present to Members an update on managing performance information and 
present Quarter 2 performance indicator outturns for 2010/11. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
Members note the contents of the main report and Quarter 2 performance indicator 
outturns for 2010/11 attached at Appendix A.  

 

 

3 Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. At the Quality Services Committee meeting of 7 September 2010, officers 
reported on the changes being implemented since the establishment of the 
coalition government.  It was reported that the future of the National Indicators 
was unsure and local authorities were waiting to hear whether the National 
Indicator set, as a whole, is to be retained or replaced.  

3.2. The Council has now received an update from the Secretary of State for 
Communities and Local Government announcing that the National Indicator set 
is to be replaced with ‘a single, comprehensive list of all data we expect local 
government to provide to central government’.  The aim is to review and reduce 
the data requirements by April 2011 to ensure that the list contains only the 
minimum data set needed by central government.  Councils have been advised 
that they will be involved in the review and, until it is completed and the 
outcomes agreed, the present NI set, excluding those indicators already 
deleted, should continue to be collected.  

3.3. The update also announced that full control of all current Local Area 
Agreements (LAA) is to be handed to local authorities from 13 October 2010.  
National Indicators used to monitor the performance of these agreements will 
no longer be monitored by the government and local authorities are also not 
required to prepare new LAA agreements from April 2011.   

3.4. The LAA indicator targets were based on a mixture of local priorities, as agreed 
in the ‘Vision for Kent’, which is the Sustainable Community Strategy for the 
County, and government set priorities.  With the abolition of the LAA there will 
no longer be any requirement to set targets related to government priorities.  
However, work to refresh the ‘Vision for Kent’ and Dartford’s Corporate Plan will 
incorporate identifying indicators and targets to monitor progress. 

3.5. Therefore, in 2010/11 officers will continue to use National Indicators where 
relevant to their service.  However, with regard to monitoring of corporate 
issues, indicators that will be used in future will be more varied and meaningful 
to Dartford and the revised Corporate Plan will include indicators that have a 
direct link with what the Council is trying to achieve. 

3.6. With regard to the Quarter 2 outturns, Corporate Plan indicators are not 
separately identified as the revised Plan is still being drafted.  However, many 
indicators that are in the current Plan are included in the Appendix. 

Agenda Item 10Page 35



 
QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

30 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

3.7.  The bar chart at the beginning of the Appendix shows overall performance of 
the indicators collected on a quarterly basis.  Of the 80 collected, 50 (62.5%) 
are performing well with 21 (26.25%) under-performing by more than 10% of 
their target.   

3.8.  Comments on Performance Indicators 
 
Benefits 
At the meeting of this Committee on 7 September, Members asked for an 
update on Benefits performance following the release of Quarter 2 performance 
outturns. As can be seen from the Appendix, the improvement in performance 
has been sustained and a report detailing progress against the Improvement 
Plan is provided for Members’ information elsewhere on this Agenda.  
 
Management Analysis & Intelligence 
At Quarter 1 it was suggested that LI PS1 Average search turnaround in days 
should be replaced with a new indicator ‘The percentage of searches carried 
out in 5 working days’ to make it more meaningful for customers’ expectations. 
As there is already an indicator that measures the percentage of searches 
carried out in 10 working days (LI PS14) the intention is to reduce this timescale 
to 5 days from Quarter 3.  It is also intended to keep the indicator monitoring 
average turnaround time (LI PS1). 
 

3.9  Additions/deletions from previous report 
 
Since the Quarter 1 outturns reported to this Committee in September, two 
indicators have been deleted that monitor performance of Project Delivery 
budgets.  It is felt that these are necessary indicators for internal management 
purposes but do not assist in illustrating the performance of the service and are 
not, therefore, suitable for monitoring by the Committee. 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
Those indicators that will be used to monitor the revised Corporate Plan are yet to be 
agreed. 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk assessments 
 

Financial Implications None 
Legal Implications None 
Staffing Implications None 
Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 
 

6. Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Service Performance Indicators –Quarter 2 Outturns 2010/11 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10 Page 36



 
QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

30 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

 

.BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Documents 
consulted 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information Category 

Covalent 
software system 

  Noelle Flaherty  
Ext: 3210 

MAI/ 
Executive 
Directorate 

N/A 

 

Agenda Item 10Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

1 

Service Performance Indicator Outturns - Quarter 2 2010/11 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Performance Indicator Status 

 
Under performing 

 
Within 5 - 10% of its target 

 
Performing well 

 
No Comparator 

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
0

P
a
g
e
 3

9



APPENDIX A 

2 

 

Managed By Building Control Manager 
 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

BCPI-11 
Percentage of Formal written 
advice given to the applicant 
within 15 working Days 

78.83% 98% 82.33% 98% 78.33% 
 

80.33% 

BCPI-12 
Percentage of Formal written 

advice given to the applicant 
within 10 working days 

67.42% 85% 48.67% 85% 52.67% 
 

50.67% 

Targets are set in accordance with the 
District Surveyors Association Quality 
Matrix. To achieve these targets 
additional resources would be 
required. Seasonal factors will affect 
the services performance with regard 
to this target as well as the level of 
complexity of projects being 
supervised on site.  

BCPI-08 
Percentage of Customer 
Satisfaction 

98.25% 90% 100% 90% 100% 
 

100% 

Targets are set in accordance with the 
District Surveyors Association Quality 
Matrix. Customers value the advice 
and assistance given by BC Surveyors 
at all stages of their project. Not only 
has the team received good reviews 
from customers, but is also obtaining 
repeat orders and bid requests from 
major construction companies and 
developers who have previously used 
the service.  

BCPI-10 
Percentage of Formal written 
advice given to the applicant 
within 25 working days 

93.25% 98% 100% 98% 94% 
 

97% 

Targets are set in accordance with the 
District Surveyors Association Quality 
Matrix. Seasonal factors will affect the 
services performance with regard to 
this target as well as the level of 
complexity of projects being 
supervised on site. The service has 
not met the target this quarter as it 
includes the summer which is the 
section's busiest period.  

 

 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 1
0

P
a

g
e
 4

0



APPENDIX A 

3 

 

Managed By Communications Manager 
 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

LI PS3 
Number of people 
participating in the Elders 
Forum per meeting 

139 150 140 150 131 
 

140 
The dip in figures is due to peak 
holiday period (August).  

LI PS19 
(CC12) 

Number of young people 
participating in the Dartford 
Youth Council over the year 

255 150 85 75 106 
 

106  

 

Managed By Customer Services Manager 
 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

CSPI-2 
Less than 5% of customer 
services telephone calls 
abandoned 

9.64% 5% 10.24% 5% 7.3% 
 

8.77% 

 
 
Although we are not at target there 
has been significant improvement 
during the last quarter with the 
percentage of calls abandoned 
falling from 10.24% to 7.3%.  
 
 

CSPI-6 

25% of Training & 
Development Officer Time 
spent in 1:1 contact with 
Team members 

1.88% 25% 15% 25% 16.67% 
 

15.83% 

More time has been spent during 
the last quarter looking at ways in 
which the Customer Service 
department can develop. Care will 
be taken over the next quarter to 
ensure that there is an increase in 
the percentage of time spent in 1:1 
contact with team members.  

CSPI-1 
80% of customer services 
telephone calls answered in 
20 seconds 

67.8% 80% 65.3% 80% 74.43% 
 

69.87%   

CSPI-3 80% of front counter 65.9% 80% 70.1% 80% 73.2% 
 

71.65%   

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
0

P
a
g
e
 4

1



APPENDIX A 

4 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

customers visiting customer 
services seen within 15 mins 

CSPI-7 
Customer Services Advisors 
cross trained to handle an 
average of 80% services 

80.95% 80% 78.83% 80% 73.1% 
 

75.97%   

CSPI-4 
Reply to 100% of customer 
services e-mails within 2 
working days 

96.25% 100% 97.33% 100% 98.33% 
 

97.83%   

CSPI-5 
100% of postal payments to 
be banked by the second 
working day of receipt 

89.69% 100% 86.67% 100% 97.67% 
 

92.17%   

CSPI-8 
Monthly status meetings to 
take place for all 
represented services. 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 
 

100%   

LI PS21 
(QS1.4b) 

Percentage of calls to 
customer contact centre 
dealt with at first point of 
call 

97.35% 80% 97.5% 80% 97.3% 
 

97.4%   

 

Managed By Development Control Manager 
 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

LI PS15 
(BV204) 

Planning appeals allowed 28.41% 25% 33.33% 25% 42.86% 
 

38.1% 

Three out of seven appeals were 
allowed.  All decisions were matters 
of judgement, one of which was 
particularly finely balanced.  
 

NI 157a 
(BV109a) 

Processing of planning 
applications: Major 
applications 

69.57% 70% 66.67% 70% 55.56% 
 

66.67% 

All applications which went out of 
time involved legal agreements, 
including 2 at Ingress Park. This is 
likely to remain a problem.  
 

NI 157b 
(BV109b) 

Processing of planning 
applications: Minor 

89.47% 87% 90% 87% 90.63% 
 

90% 
Performance is likely to be on target 
for the remainder of the year.  

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 1
0

P
a

g
e
 4

2



APPENDIX A 

5 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

applications 

NI 157c 
(BV109c) 

Processing of planning 
applications: Other 
applications 

96.04% 94% 95.04% 94% 94.26% 
 

95.04% 
Performance is likely to be on target 
for the remainder of the year.  

 

Managed By Enforcement & Regulatory Services Manager 
 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

LI ET7 

(E1.4a) 

Average number of days 

individual unauthorised 
encampments on Council 
Land 

2 5 8 2.5 0 
 

10 

Officers are aware of unauthorised 

encampments totalling 5 days on 
non-Council land. These were 2 
days at Stone Recreation Ground 
(Parish Council) also 2 days at Bean 
Country Park (KCC) and 1 day at 
David Lloyd Leisure (Private Land). 
Officers were available to assist 
Stone Parish Council if required. 

 

Managed By Environmental Health Services Manager 
 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 

2009/10 

Annual 
Target 

2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

LI HW3 
(E3.5b(i) 

Percentage of food premises 
inspected within target for: 
high risk areas 

100% 100% 93% 100% 91% 
 

91%   

LI HW4 
Number of food premises 
inspected within target for 
high risk areas. 

86 53 13 12 11 
 

24   

EHPI-4 
Percentage of requests for 
service - response within 5 
working days 

95.39% 80% 97% 80% 98% 
 

97.5%   

EHPI-5 
Percentage of Animal control 
requests for services 

98.88% 85% 99% 85% 100% 
 

99.5%   

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
0

P
a
g
e
 4

3



APPENDIX A 

6 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

responded to within 5 
working days 

EHPI-6 

Percentage of treatments for 
contract pest control 
requests commencing within 
5 working days 

96.47% 90% 97% 90% 98% 
 

97.5%   

EHPI-12 
Percentage of service 
requests responded to in 10 
working days 

97.21% 90% 98% 90% 99% 
 

98.5%   

 

 

Managed By Head of Finance & Resources 
 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

FRPI-5 
Working Days Lost Due to 
Sickness Absence - long 
term 

3.32 2.9 0.92 1.5 2.4 
 

2.4 

Overall the average number of days 
sickness is 4.00 per employee for 
the half year. This is less than last 
year. Long term is higher than 
target but this is mainly because of 
the change in definition from 42 
days to 28 days.  

FRPI-4 
Working Days Lost Due to 
Sickness Absence - short 
term 

5.64 4.9 0.7 2.5 1.6 
 

1.6   

FRPI-8 
Sundry Debtors - 
outstanding debt 

£2,200,000 £1,000,000 £1,100,000 £1,000,000 £838,000 
 

£838,000   

LI PS6 
(BV8) 

Percentage of invoices paid 
on time 

95.15% 95% 91.53% 95% 93.78% 
 

93.78%   

 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 1
0

P
a

g
e
 4

4



APPENDIX A 

7 

 

Managed By Head of Housing 
 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

HPI-1 
(BV66c) 

Rent Collection and 
Arrears Recovery: Notices 
Seeking Possession. 

15% 16.41% 4.37% 8.2% 11.03% 
 

11.03% 

The number of NOSP's issued for rent 
arrears is a direct result of the housing 
teams conscious decision to take a more 
robust approach when dealing with rent 
arrears cases however when this tool is used 
in a balanced way and in conjunction with 
other rent collection activities, techniques 
and support for the tenant in arrears the 
number can be managed and kept within 
target.  

LI HS4 
(BV66d) 

Rent Collection and 
Arrears Recovery: 
evictions 

0.24% 0.2% 0.05% 0.1% 0.13% 
 

0.13% 

Performance is a mere 0.03% above target 
and must be seen as a positive in light of the 
difficult economic condition being 
experienced by tenants. Evictions remain the 
ultimate sanction against regular non payers 
but the Housing team but the actual 
numbers are low in relation to the actual 
number of tenants in arrears. This should be 
seen as a positive as an eviction often 
means that the client re-enters the system 
as homeless and preventing eviction via 
payment plans and the like is a success. 

LI 
HS5(BV2
12) 

Average time taken to re-
let local authority housing. 

24.66 22 25.14 22 24.74 
 

24.74 

Combination of large number of voids and 
new contractor bedding down in early part of 
year has resulted in target not being 
reached. Management action being taken to 
correct the situation which has improved 
performance when compared to August.  

LI HS8 
(H2.1c) 

Reduce FTA Arrears £288,052 £250,000 £295,803 £250,000 £297,918 
 

£297,918 

Increased eviction activity and conscious 
management decision to concentrate on 
current rather than former tenant debt has 

resulted in FTA level increasing. However 
this will become a priority in the 3rd quarter 
which will bring the figure back close to 
target by the end of the financial year.  

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
0

P
a
g
e
 4

5



APPENDIX A 

8 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

LI HS10 
Urgent repairs completed 
on time. 

95.8% 99% 89.7% 99% 88.87% 
 

88.87% 

Performance in this area remains below 
target. This is due to new contractor 
continuing to bed down new systems and 
management arrangements. Corrective 
management action is being taken and 
performance last months has shown a slight 
improvement as we strive to meet the end 
of year target.  

LI HS11 
Non- urgent repairs 
completed on time. 

94.18% 99% 87% 99% 80.36% 
 

80.36% 

Performance in this area remains 
significantly below target. This is due to new 
contractor continuing to bed down new 
systems and management arrangements. 
Corrective management action is being 
taken and performance last month has 
shown a slight improvement as we strive to 
meet the end of year target.  

LI HS6 
(BV213) 

Preventing Homelessness 
- number of households 
where homelessness 
prevented 

5.28 6 1.35 3 2.73 
 

2.73 

Officers have a very limited ability to control 
the number of approaches nor the 
circumstances of each case so achieving this 
target can sometimes be difficult but is not 
necessarily a symptom of the fact that the 
prevention service is not working 
successfully.  
 

NI 156 
Number of households 
living in temporary 
accommodation 

63 50 50 50 53 
 

53 

Slightly above target at this time but the 
number and volume of cases that require TA 
is not under our direct control.  
 

HPI-2 

Completed number of 
inspections under the 
Housing Health and Safety 
Rating Scheme (HHSRS) 
 

181 40 70 20 104 
 

104   

HPI-3 

Percentage rent lost 
through local authority 
dwellings becoming 
vacant. 
 

0.69% 0.7% 0.61% 0.7% 0.53% 
 

0.53%   

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 1
0

P
a

g
e
 4

6



APPENDIX A 

9 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

HPI-11 

Housing Advice Service - 
Percentage of repeat 
homelessness within 2 
years (formerly BV214) 
 

3.82% 5% 0% 5% 0% 
 

0%   

HPI-19 
The number of non-decent 
homes 
 

466 500 473 500 309 
 

309   

HPI-20 

 
The number of Private 
Sector Properties made 
decent each year. 
 

 100 37 50 53 
 

53 
 
On target  
 

LI 
CP/HS2 

 
The number of private 
sector vacant dwellings 
that are returned into 
occupation or demolished 
 

114 75 39 37 58 
 

58   

LI HS1 
(BV63) 

Energy Efficiency of 
Housing Stock 
 

71 73 71 72 71 
 

71.45   

LI HS2 
(BV66a) 

Rent Collection and 
Arrears Recovery - rents 
collected as a proportion 
of rents owed. 

96.81% 98.3% 89.55% 94% 93.37% 
 

93.37% 

 
This indicator relates Rent collected by the 
local authority as a proportion of rents owed 
on Housing Revenue Account and has 
exceeded the target set. The fact that this 
indicator is so close to target is a significant 
achievement when you consider the impact 
of the recession and it is a testament to the 
teams skills that they have been able to 
come up with new ways to collect the rent 
whilst trying to sustain the tenancy security 
of often quite vulnerable people. The 
cumulative total continues to rise month on 
month and is just below the stretch target 
set. We are confident end of year out turn 
will be close to target.  

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
0

P
a
g
e
 4

7



APPENDIX A 

10 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

LI HS3 
(BV66b) 

Rent collection and arrears 
recovery – Percentage of 
Tenants with rent arrears 
of 7 weeks or more 

4.8% 4.5% 4.05% 4.5% 4.59% 
 

4.59%   

LI HS9 
(H3.1a) 

Number of lettings to 
households within the 
Borough. 

94.66% 85% 96.7% 85% 96.84% 
 

96.84%   

 
 

 

Managed By Leisure Services Manager 
 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

E9b 
Market stalls occupancy: 
Saturday 

88.14% 95% 85.09% 95% 84.41% 
 

84.75% 

Whilst the quarterly trend is 
downwards, the market percent fill is 
increasing - with one new trader 
signed on in September and a second 
in the pipeline for October.  

LSPI-3 Sports Hall - peak use 74.25% 90% 68% 90% 65% 
 

66.5% 

This indicator has been significantly 
affected by block booking cancelations 
formerly held by both GSK and DBC 
staff and despite marketing the quieter 
times, there has been little increase in 
the usage and as a result, taking into 
account the present economic climate, 
it will be proposed that the target for 
2011/12 will be amended to a more 
realistic figure of 75%. It should be 
noted however, that overall the Sports 
Centre still achieved its budget 
targets.  

E9a 
Market stalls occupancy: 
Thursday 

60.5% 60% 56.35% 60% 55.95% 
 

56.15%   

LI HW1 
(L5a) 

No: of exhibitions each 
year at the Museum 

3 3 0 1 1 
 

1   

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 1
0

P
a

g
e
 4

8



APPENDIX A 

11 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

LI HW2 
(L5b) 

No: of talks given within 
the Museum & other 
venues. 

36 30 10 15 19 
 

19 
This above target figure includes extra 
events connected with the Heritage 
Open Days.  

LSPI-1 Gym membership 716 675 737 675 728 
 

705  

LSPI-2 
Gym Membership - Total 
average fitness spend 

£29.8 £28 £30.29 £28 £29.85 
 

£30.01  

LSPI-9 
Acacia Hall Bar & Catering 
- No: of functions being 
held 

194 136 33 68 78 
 

78  

 

 

Managed By Management Analysis and Intelligence Manager 
 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

LI PS1 
Average search turn 
around in days 

0.71 0.5 0.81 0.5 1.04 
 

0.92 

Target to be adjusted to 3 days to 
manage customer expectations and 
effective use of resource. Current 
target used to manage internal goal 
for electronic service delivery.  

LI PS2 
 
No: of official searches 
 

616 1200 167 300 233 
 

400 

The target was set in 2007/08 and 
was not adjusted in the hope of the 
Housing Market recovering. It is 
currently being used as a benchmark 
of that recovery.  

LI PS14 
(BV179) 

Percentage of Standard 
Land searches carried out 
in 10 working days 

100% 90% 100% 90% 100% 
 

100% 

This indicator will be replaced from 
Quarter 3 with a similar indicator but 
with a lower timescale of land 
searches carried out in 5 working 
days.  

 

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
0

P
a
g
e
 4

9



APPENDIX A 

12 

 

Managed By Project Delivery Manager 
 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

PDPI-12 
Project Delivery 
Performance - Spend 
against Grants 

New indicator 
for 2010/11 

£1760000.00 £231000.00 £400000.00 £546586.00 
 

£777586.00 
Made up of £88,521 Mini Pitches, 
£2,542 surfacing, £171,639 
Greenheart, £52,884 Sustrans  

PDPI-13 
Project Delivery 
Performance - Parking 
Income 

New indicator 
for 2010/11 

£35000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2000.00 
 

£2000.00 

Currently on target due to receipt of 
unexpected income however projected 
income for the Greenhithe Parking 
Scheme may be less than expected 
due to protracted negotiations with 
car park freeholders. 

 
 

Managed By Revenues & Benefits Manager 
 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

BPI-18c 
Percentage of new claims 
assessed within 14 days of 
all information 

New Indicator 
2010/11 

91% 89.78% 90% 88.77% 
 

89.29% 

Performance has been impacted by 
the targeting of resources on 
improving the average days to 
process change in details and the 
percentage of change in details 
assessed within 14 days.  

BPI-19a 
Percentage of changes in 
details assessed within 14 
days of all information 

New Indicator 
2010/11 

91% 85.23% 90% 88.53% 
 

87.07% 

Resources have been targeted at 
significantly improving the average 
days to process all change in details. 
Performance has improved by 3.3% 
compared with Q1 but remains below 
target.  
 

BPI-18a 

Time taken to process 
Housing Benefit/Council 
Tax Benefit new claims 
from received date 

42.42 22 21.6 22 21.57 
 

21.59   

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 1
0

P
a

g
e
 5

0



APPENDIX A 

13 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

BPI-18d 
Percentage of new claims 
assessed within 50 days 
 

New Indicator 
2010/11 

95% 97.47% 95% 99.04% 
 

98.26%   

BPI-19 

Time taken to process 
Housing Benefit/Council 
Tax Benefit changes in 
details. 

16.86 11 13.45 11 11.36 
 

12.29   

LI 
CP/PS3 
(BV9) 

Percentage of Council Tax 
collected 

97.5% 97.7% 33.2% 60% 61.3% 
 

61.3%   

LI 
CP/PS4 
(BV10) 

Percentage of Non-
domestic Rates Collected 

97.1% 98% 36% 60% 64.1% 
 

64.1%   

RVPI-1 
Percentage of all 
correspondence answered 
within 7 days. 

100% 98% 100% 98% 99.62% 
 

99.62%   

RVPI-2 
Council Tax customers on 
Direct debit 

61.6% 63% 62.9% 63% 62.9% 
 

62.9%   

 
 

Managed By Waste & Recycling Manager 
 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

NI 192 
Percentage of household 
waste sent for reuse, 
recycling and composting 

22.77% 32% 22.14% 32% 23.94% 
 

23.94% 

Recycling target was set before 
contamination rates had to be taken 
into account. We should achieve 26% 
this year and 30% next year because 
of new garden waste collection 
scheme.  

LI ET5 
(E2) 

Speed of removal of fly-
tipping 

1.5 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.7 
 

1.7   

LI ET6 
(E1.1a) 

Removal of graffiti within 
72 hours of it being 
reported 

91.96% 94% 97.94% 94% 97.42% 
 

97.42%   

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
0

P
a
g
e
 5

1



APPENDIX A 

14 

Q1 2010/11 Quarter 2 Outturn 2010/11 
Code Short Name 

End of Year 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Annual 
Target 
2010/11 Outturn Target Outturn Status 

Year to Date 
2010/11 @ 

Q2 

Q2 Commentary 

NI 191 
Residual household waste 
per household 

715 704 177 352 334 
 

334   

NI 193 
 
Percentage of municipal 
waste land filled 

64.1% 10% 10% 10% 5% 
 

7.5%   

NI 195a 
Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness: 
Litter 

11% 5% N/A 5% 4% 
 

4%   

NI 195b 
Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness: 
Detritus 

10% 9% N/A 9% 7% 
 

7%   

NI 195c 
Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness: 
Graffiti 

0% 3% N/A 3% 0% 
 

0%   

NI 195d 
Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness: 
Fly-posting 

0% 0% N/A 0% 0% 
 

0%   

NI 196 
(BV199d) 

Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
by reducing the incidents 
of fly tipping 

3 3 3 3 3 
 

3   

 

 

 

  

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 1
0

P
a

g
e
 5

2



 

QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2010 

 

CORPORATE COMPLAINTS 2010/11 
 

1. Summary 
 

1.1   This report provides Members with information on corporate complaints 
processed between 1 April 2010 and 31 October 2010.  

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That the corporate complaints information provided at Appendix A to the report, 

be noted. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. At the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 29 April 2009, 
whilst considering an item entitled “Complaints Monitoring and 
Procedure Annual Review - 2008/09”, it was felt that the Quality 
Services Committee might also find it helpful to receive some of the 
complaints monitoring information to inform proposals for service 
improvements. 

 
3.2. The table attached at Appendix A provides a list of the corporate 

complaints processed between 1 April 2010 and 31 October 2010, the 
content of which can be broken down as follows: 

 
Total number of new Corporate Complaints received  48 
 
1 of these (309) was not investigated using the Council’s corporate 
complaint procedure but was only investigated by the Ombudsman 
who has proposed a way of settling the complaint locally. 
 
In addition, 2 complaints (220 and 232) have been escalated to Stage 
2 following their investigation at Stage 1 in 2009/10, and 2 complaints 
(199 and 253) have been investigated by the Ombudsman following 
their investigation at Stages 1 and 2 in 2009/10. 
 
For the 2 complaints that had been escalated to the Ombudsman one 
was classed by the Ombudsman as ‘outside jurisdiction’ and for the 
other the Ombudsman found ‘no or insufficient evidence of 
maladministration/ service failure’. 
 
Of the 49 which have been processed by the Council in 2010/11: 
 

• 12 were upheld 

• 8 were partially upheld 

• 22 were dismissed 

• 7 remain under investigation 
 

and 
 

Agenda Item 11Page 53



 

QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2010 

 
� 35 were investigated at Stage 1 
� 7 went straight to Stage 2 for investigation 
� 6 were investigated at Stage 1 and were then escalated 

by the complainant for investigation at Stage 2 
� 1 was investigated at Stage 2 and was then escalated by 

the complainant to Stage 3 (Ombudsman) 
 
To the Council’s knowledge, only one of the complaints (312) that has 
been investigated by the Council in 2010/2011 has been referred to the 
Ombudsman for further investigation. 
 
The following table shows how the new complaints that have been 
received were distributed across service areas: 
 

Service Area Number 
Upheld 

Number 
Partially 
Upheld 

Number 
Dismissed 

Number Under 
Investigation 

Total 

Housing 10 3 9 4 26 
Development 
Control 

 1 2  3 

Benefits   2 1 (only investigated 

by the Ombudsman 
who has proposed a 

‘local settlement’) 

3 

Council Tax   3  3 
Parking   2  2 
Waste and 
Recycling 

1 1   2 

Environmental 
Health 

 1 1  2 

Project 
Delivery 

 1  1 2 

Legal   1 1 2 
Electoral 
Registration 

  1  1 

Leisure 1    1 
Licensing   1  1 

 
3.3. The information contained in this report will be updated as the 

municipal year progresses and presented to future meetings of the 
Quality Services Committee. 
 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
To provide high quality services that reflect public aspirations and 
demonstrate improvement. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11 Page 54



 

QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2010 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications None  

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None  

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 

 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
 Not applicable 
 

7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – List of Corporate Complaints received between 1 April 
2010 and 31 October 2010. 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Documents consulted Date / 

File Ref 
Report Author Section and 

Directorate 
Exempt 

Information 
Category 

 
Corporate Complaints 
database (held in Covalent) 

 Alan Stoneham 
(01322) 343330 

Member 
Services 

N/A 

 

Agenda Item 11Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 

 
 

 

Corporate Complaints 2010/2011 

 

Generated on: 02 November 2010 
 

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a
g
e
 5

7



APPENDIX A 

 

 

1st Quarter 2009/10, 2nd Quarter 2009/10, 4th Quarter 2009/10 

Stage 1 -> Stage 2 -> Stage 3 
 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

06/09 - 199 
Development 
Control 

Unreasonable delay in 
responding to a request 
to negotiate  

10 Jun 2009 30 Jul 2010 11 Aug 2010 

Stage 1 - 12 
days  

Stage 2 - 20 
days  

Partially 
Upheld 

Stage 1 investigation - 10 
Jun to 26 June 09 - 
complaint partially upheld  
Stage 2 investigation 
started on 14 Jul to 11 
Aug 09 - Stage 1 findings 
confirmed  
A request from the 
Ombudsman for further 
information on 10 Feb 10 
indicates that it is being 
investigated at Stage 3.  
11 Aug 10 - Ombudsman 
finds 'No or insufficient 
evidence of 
maladministration/service 
failure'  

Action taken at Stage 1 - 
The delayed response was 
considered to be 
unreasonable and planning 
officers have now been 
advised to provide regular 
status reports where 
investigations are taking 
longer than anticipated.  

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a

g
e
 5

8



APPENDIX A 

 

 

2nd Quarter 2009/10, 1st Quarter 2010/11 

Stage 1 -> Stage 2 
 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

09/09 - 220 Parking 

Alleged misleading 
information given by an 
officer and concerns with 
the proposed new 
parking controls.  

08 Sep 2009 16 Jul 2010 05 Oct 2010 

Stage 1 - 13 
days  

Stage 2 - 86 
days  

Partially 
Upheld 

Stage 1 investigation 8 
Sep to 25 Sep 09 - 
complaint partially 
upheld.  
Stage 2 investigation 
started on 6 Jun 2010.  
Stage 2 timescales 
extended because of 
holiday commitments - 
with complainant's 
agreement  
25 Jul 10 - Further issues 
raised by complainant 
following distribution of a 
draft Stage 2 response.  

Apologies given for the 
failure to acknowledge or 
respond to some 
communications.  
Review of approach to 
parking enforcement in the 
vicinity of the junction of 
Shepherds Lane and 
Roseberry Gardens to be 
carried out.  

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a
g
e
 5

9



APPENDIX A 

 

 

3rd Quarter 2009/10, 4th Quarter 2009/10, 2nd Quarter 2010/11 

Stage 1 -> Stage 2 -> Stage 3 
 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

11/09 - 253 Licensing 
Alleged unfair licensed 
taxi trade practices  

23 Nov 2009 11 Dec 2009 07 Sep 2010 

Stage 1 - 19 
days  

Stage 2 - 44 
days  

Outside 
Jurisdiction 

This complaint was 
forwarded to the Council 
by the Ombudsman as a 
'premature complaint'.  
The Stage 1 response 
was slightly delayed in 
the hope of providing 
information relating to an 
ongoing associated issue.  
Stage 1 investigation - 23 
Nov to 18 Dec 09 - 
Complaint dismissed  
Stage 2 investigation - 2 
Feb to 7 Apr 10 - 
Complaint partially upheld 
Stage 2 investigation was 
suspended for 4 days 
whilst awaiting for the 
complainant to confirm 
that they are happy with 
the proposed investigator  
The Stage 2 investigation 
was further delayed due 
to the complexity of the 
investigation  
7 Sep 10 - Complaint was 
referred back to the 
Ombudsman who 
classified it as 'outside 
jurisdiction'  

Further views on the 
absence of a Hackney 
Carriage Stand to be 
produced.  
Guidelines to be issued to 
Grabbacab marshals.  
Anonymous inspection of 
marshals to be scheduled.  
Outstanding letters to be 
processed  

 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a

g
e
 6

0



APPENDIX A 

 

 

3rd Quarter 2009/10 

Stage 2 
 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

10/09 - 232 
Development 
Control 

Alleged officer partiality 
in relation to a planning 
application + racial 
discrimination  

05 Oct 2009 25 Jun 2010       

Investigation suspended 
on 16 Oct 09 at the 
request of the 
complainant.  
Decision made to escalate 
the investigation to Stage 
2 on 26 May 2010.  
5 July 10 - Following 
letter received from 
complainant the Stage 2 

investigation was 
suspended.  
21 Jul 10 - Decision made 
to complete Stage 2 
investigation.  

  

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a
g
e
 6

1



APPENDIX A 

 

 

1st Quarter 2010/11 

Stage 1 
 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

04/10 - 289 Parking 
Failure to enforce 
parking regulations  

09 Apr 2010 30 Apr 2010 30 Apr 2010 15 days  Dismissed     

04/10 - 292 Leisure 
Unnecessary payment of 
subscription to Acacia 
Social Club  

01 Apr 2010 22 Apr 2010 13 Apr 2010 6 days  Upheld   
Apologies given and 
subscription refunded  

04/10 - 293 Housing 
Poor service from 
heating contractor  

07 Apr 2010 28 Apr 2010 16 Apr 2010 7 days  Upheld   

Contractor was advised of 
the complainants concerns. 
The outstanding work was 
then completed.  

04/10 - 295 
Environmental 
Health 

Delay in processing 
registration as a 
tattooist, alleged rude 
attitude of Council 
officer.  

16 Apr 2010 10 May 2010 11 May 2010 16 days  
Partially 
Upheld 

  

Discussions were held with 
the officer over the alleged 
rude attitude. The 
registration was processed 
within the permitted 
timescales.  

04/10 - 296 
Waste and 
Recycling 

Verbal abuse following 
near accident  

28 Apr 2010 19 May 2010 12 May 2010 9 days  
Partially 
Upheld 

  

Apologies conveyed and 
operative reminded of the 
need to be vigilant when 
working in road works  

 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a

g
e
 6

2



APPENDIX A 

 

 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

05/10 - 298 
Development 
Control 

Alleged officer 
mishandling of a 
planning application  

06 May 2010 08 Jul 2010 05 Jul 2010 41 days  
Partially 
Upheld 

The response was 
delayed because the 
original investigating 
officer had an accident 
and was unable to 
complete his 
investigation. The 
complainant was kept 

informed of progress 
throughout.  

Some incorrect advice had 
originally been given. 
Officers were reminded of 
the need to formally advise 
applicants if changes to 
development descriptions 
are required and to obtain 
acknowledgement prior to 

making that change. 
Officers were also 
reminded of the need to 
research histories for any 
pertinent and material 
considerations relevant to 
proposed schemes.  

05/10 - 299 
Electoral 
Registration 

Issue when parking to 
vote in General Election  

06 May 2010 27 May 2010 17 May 2010 7 days  Dismissed     

05/10 - 300 Council Tax 
Disputed Council Tax 
debt  

24 May 2010 14 Jun 2010 01 Jun 2010 5 days  Dismissed     

05/10 - 303 Benefits 
Alleged false accusations 
made during telephone 
call  

21 May 2010 11 Jun 2010 18 Jun 2010 19 days  Dismissed 
Response delayed due to 
staff holidays  

Staff reminded of need to 
offer those called the 
opportunity to verify that 
the call is from a Council 
officer  

06/10 - 301 Benefits 
Insensitive handling of 
benefits overpayment  

19 May 2010 09 Jun 2010 01 Jun 2010 8 days  Dismissed     

06/10 - 302 Parking 
More parking 
enforcement activity 
required around schools  

01 Jun 2010 22 Jun 2010 03 Jun 2010 2 days  Dismissed     

06/10 - 304 Housing 

Poor quality of 
maintenance work 
carried out by 
contractors  

08 Jun 2010 29 Jun 2010 14 Jun 2010 4 days  Upheld   

Contractor reminded of the 
need to monitor work that 
is carried out. Corrective 
work undertaken to the 
complainant's satisfaction.  

 

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a
g
e
 6

3



APPENDIX A 

 

 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

06/10 - 305 Housing 
Maintenance work not 
completed to customer's 
satisfaction  

21 Jun 2010 12 Jul 2010 29 Jun 2010 6 days  Upheld   

A temporary repair had 
been carried out but the 
need to carry out further 
repair work had not been 
conveyed to Dartford prior 
to the April change of 
maintenance contractor  

06/10 - 306 Housing 
Alleged unhelpful advice 
given by Housing 
Department  

21 Jun 2010 12 Jul 2010 22 Jun 2010 1 day  Dismissed     

06/10 - 307 Housing 

Alleged less than 
satisfactory response to 
cancellation of 
temporary 
accommodation  

22 Jun 2010 13 Jul 2010 28 Jun 2010 4 days  Dismissed     

 

1st Quarter 2010/11 

Stage 2 
 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

04/10 - 294 
Development 
Control 

Allegation of officer 
misconduct  

06 Apr 2010 05 May 2010 15 Apr 2010 7 days  Dismissed 

Was not processed at 
Stage 1 due to the need 
to fast track the 
complaint through the 
complaints process  

  

05/10 - 297 Legal 

Alleged disclosure of 
sensitive information in 
response to an FOI 
request  

05 May 2010 04 Jun 2010 06 May 2010 1 day  Dismissed 

Due to the nature of the 
complaint the initial 
investigation was carried 
out at Stage 2  

Although the complaint 
was dismissed the alleged 
sensitive information was 
removed from public 
access and will now only 
be released on request  

 
 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a

g
e
 6

4



APPENDIX A 

 

 

2nd Quarter 2010/11 

Stage 1 
 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

07/10 - 310 
Development 
Control 

Issues with a site 
meeting and the 
application notification 
process  

20 Jul 2010 10 Aug 2010 29 Jul 2010 7 days  Dismissed     

07/10 - 311 Housing 
Alleged failure to carry 
out a plumbing repair in 
a timely manner  

30 Jul 2010 20 Aug 2010 05 Aug 2010 4 days  Upheld   

Contractor advised of 
issues raised in relation to 
the service provided. 
Plumbing repair completed 
and repair to damaged 
ceiling scheduled.  

07/10 - 315 Housing 
Alleged rude telephone 
manner  

27 Jul 2010 17 Aug 2010 03 Aug 2010 5 days  Dismissed     

08/10 - 316 Council Tax 

Summons received for 
non payment of Council 
Tax but no associated 
reminders were received  

09 Aug 2010 31 Aug 2010 09 Aug 2010 1 day  Dismissed     

08/10 - 317 Housing 

Poor quality of 
maintenance work 
carried out by 
contractors  

09 Aug 2010 31 Aug 2010 23 Aug 2010 10 days  
Partially 
Upheld 

  
Apologies given for delays 
in resolving the issues 
raised  

08/10 - 318 Housing 

Alleged lack of action 
being taken to address 
problem with noisy 
neighbours  

10 Aug 2010 01 Sep 2010 18 Aug 2010 6 days  Dismissed     

08/10 - 321 Housing 
Failed to send refund 
when garage rental was 
terminated  

23 Aug 2010 14 Sep 2010 23 Aug 2010 1 day  Upheld   

Apologies given. Payment 
of refund actioned. Staff 
reminded of the correct 
procedure to follow in 
future.  

08/10 - 322 Council Tax 
Unnecessary summons 
for unpaid Council Tax  

17 Aug 2010 08 Sep 2010 25 Aug 2010 6 days  Dismissed     

 

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a
g
e
 6

5



APPENDIX A 

 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

08/10 - 323 Housing 

Alleged lack of 
appropriate response 
when visiting the Civic 
Centre  

26 Aug 2010 17 Sep 2010 01 Sep 2010 3 days  Dismissed     

09/10 - 326 
Waste and 
Recycling 

Repeated failure to 
collect garden waste  

08 Sep 2010 29 Sep 2010 17 Sep 2010 7 days  Upheld   

Contractor asked to 
thoroughly check whether 
the bin requires emptying 
when on their rounds.  

09/10 - 327 Housing 
Unprofessional comment 
made during telephone 
conversation  

08 Sep 2010 29 Sep 2010 15 Sep 2010 5 days  Upheld   

The Officer was reminded 
of the need to act 
professionally at all times. 
Apologies for the comment 
were given at the time and 
during a subsequent 
conversation  

09/10 - 328 
Project 
Delivery 

Failure to respond to 
emailed query  

15 Sep 2010 06 Oct 2010 22 Sep 2010 5 days  
Partially 
Upheld 

  

An acknowledgement and 
an estimate of the time 
required to respond to the 
query should have been 
provided. Procedures have 
now been put in place to 
acknowledge all received 
queries and to advise of an 
estimated response date.  

09/10 - 329 Housing 

Inappropriate comments 
made by officer and 
alleged failure to 
investigate other 
reported issues.  

10 Sep 2010 01 Oct 2010 16 Sep 2010 4 days  
Partially 
Upheld 

  

The Officer was reminded 
of the need to act 
professionally at all times. 
Apologies for the comment 
were given. Other issues 
raised by the complainant 
had been handled 
appropriately.  

09/10 - 330 Housing 
Shed lock unexpectedly 
changed  

09 Sep 2010 30 Sep 2010 24 Sep 2010 11 days  Upheld   

Shed lock changed due to 
confusion relating to shed 
numbering. Keys to the 
new lock passed to the 
complainant.  

 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a

g
e
 6

6



APPENDIX A 

 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

09/10 - 331 Housing 
Alleged lack of action to 
address damp  

22 Sep 2010 13 Oct 2010 04 Oct 2010 8 days  Dismissed     

09/10 - 332 Housing 
Damage caused by 
contractors  

22 Sep 2010 13 Oct 2010 05 Oct 2010 9 days  Upheld   
Damaged tree to be 
replaced by contractor 

10/10 - 339 Housing 
Alleged unfair 
management of housing 
improvements  

28 Oct 2010 18 Nov 2010           

 

2nd Quarter 2010/11 

Stage 1 -> Stage 2 
 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

07/10 - 308 Housing 
Dissatisfied with 
allocated 
accommodation  

21 Jul 2010 31 Aug 2010 17 Aug 2010 

Stage 1 - 6 
days  

Stage 2 - 12 
days  

Dismissed 

Stage 1 investigation 21 
Jul to 29 Jul 10 - 
Complaint dismissed.  
Stage 2 investigation 
commenced 30 Jul 10.  

  

08/10 - 313 Housing 

Compensation requested 
for alleged water 
damage to personal 
property  

05 Aug 2010 24 Sep 2010 20 Sep 2010 

Stage 1 - 2 
days  

Stage 2 - 17 
days  

Dismissed 

Stage 1 investigation 5 
Aug to 9 Aug 10 - 
complaint dismissed.  
Stage 2 investigation 
started on 25 Aug 10.  

Complainant had been 
offered £200 as a goodwill 
gesture from contractor, 
and an additional payment 
from the Council if this 
failed to cover the 
insurance policy excess.  

08/10 - 314 Housing 
Alleged failure to 
respond to tenant's 
security concerns  

05 Aug 2010 20 Oct 2010   
Stage 1 - 1 

day  
 

Stage 1 investigation 5 
Aug to 6 Aug 10 - 
complaint partially upheld  
Stage 2 investigation 
started on 16 Aug 10  

Although a reply had not 
been sent in response to 
every email received, 
action was being taken to 
resolve the security issues  

 

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a
g
e
 6

7



APPENDIX A 

 

 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

08/10 - 319 Housing 
Alleged faulty 
installation of a power 
socket  

11 Aug 2010 19 Oct 2010 12 Oct 2010 

Stage 1 - 7 
days  

Stage 2 - 16 
days  

Partially 
Upheld 

Forwarded to the Council 
by the Ombudsman as a 
premature complaint  
Stage 1 investigation - 11 
Aug to 20 Aug 10 - 
complaint dismissed  
Stage 2 investigation 
started on 20 Sep 10  

Witness statements were 
not taken into account 
when preparing the 
response to the Stage 1 
investigation.  
Apologies and a 
contribution towards the 
insurance costs incurred by 
the complainant was 
offered.  

08/10 - 320 
Environmental 
Health 

Dissatisfaction with 
wasp nest removal 
service  

19 Aug 2010 05 Oct 2010 20 Sep 2010 

Stage 1 - 7 
days  

Stage 2 - 10 
days  

Dismissed 

Forwarded to the Council 
by the Ombudsman as a 
premature complaint.  
Stage 1 investigation - 19 
Aug to 31 Aug 10 - 
complaint dismissed  
Stage 2 investigation 
started on 6 Sep 10  

  

 

2nd Quarter 2010/11 

Stage 2 

 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

08/10 - 324 Licensing 
Alleged failure to fully 
respond to an FOI 
request  

31 Aug 2010 29 Sep 2010 23 Sep 2010 17 days  Dismissed 
FOI related complaints 
are automatically 
investigated at Stage 2  

  

09/10 - 335 Legal 

Unsatisfactory response 
to an FOI request / 
Should the names of 
those making FOI 
requests be published on 
the website  

22 Sep 2010 21 Oct 2010       
FOI related complaints 
are automatically 
investigated at Stage 2 

  

 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a

g
e
 6

8



APPENDIX A 

 

2nd Quarter 2010/11 

Stage 2 -> Stage 3 

 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

08/10 - 312 Housing 

Alleged 
maladministration in 
relation to the serving of 
an Improvement Notice  

04 Aug 2010 17 Nov 2010   
Stage 2 - 34 

days  
  

9 Aug 10 - Decision taken 
to process this at Stage 2  
The investigation took 
longer than anticipated 
because of the complexity 
of the issues involved and 
officer availability.  
Stage 2 investigation - 9 
Aug to 22 Sep 10 - 

complaint dismissed  
6 Oct 10 - Complaint now 
being considered by the 
Ombudsman.  

  

 

2nd Quarter 2010/11 

Stage 3 
 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

07/10 - 309 Benefits 
Dissatisfied with the 
handling of Housing 
Benefit payments  

16 Jul 2010 17 Nov 2010   
Response to 
Ombudsman 
- 14 days  

  

Response sent to 
Ombudsman's request for 
information on 5 Aug 10  
6 Oct 10 - Ombudsman 
proposes terms for a local 
settlement  

  

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a
g
e
 6

9



APPENDIX A 

 

 
 

3rd Quarter 2010/11 

Stage 1 
 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

10/10 - 333 Housing 
Unfinished maintenance 
work  

04 Oct 2010 25 Oct 2010 05 Oct 2010 1 day  Upheld   
Appointment to complete 
work arranged.  

10/10 - 336 Housing 
Alleged failure of 
contractors to keep 
appointments  

11 Oct 2010 01 Nov 2010 15 Oct 2010 4 days  Upheld   

Apologies given for 
contractor's failure to keep 
previous appointments. 
New date to complete 
works arranged.  

10/10 - 338 Housing 

Alleged failure to 
complete mother's 
kitchen refit in a timely 
manner  

22 Oct 2010 12 Nov 2010           

 

3rd Quarter 2010/11 

Stage 2 
 

Reference 
ID 

Service Description Opened Date Due Date 
Completed 
Date 

Response 
Time 

(working 
days) 

Actual 
Outcome 

Stage History Action Taken 

10/10 - 334 Housing 
Alleged mismanagement 
of tenant's housing 
status  

05 Oct 2010 03 Nov 2010       

Decision taken to process 
this complaint at Stage 2 
due to the number of 
senior officers that have 
already been involved 
with the case  

  

10/10 - 337 
Project 
Delivery 

Dissatisfaction with FOI 
response, all information 
withheld  

18 Oct 2010 16 Nov 2010       
 FOI related complaints 
are automatically 
investigated at Stage 2 

  

 

  

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a

g
e
 7

0



 
QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

30 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 
 

1. Summary 

 

1.1 This report sets out the Committee’s work plan. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1  That Members note the work plan. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. Attached at Appendix A, is the proposed work programme for this 
Committee. 

3.2. The item on the Youth Council and the Place Survey has been moved 
to the March meeting of the Committee owing to the illness of the 
officer dealing with Youth Council issues. However arrangements have 
been made for this to be discussed at the next meeting of the Youth 
Council in the New Year. 

3.3. The Chief Executive of Darent Valley has been invited to attend the 
Committee. It is likely she will attend the March meeting which will be 
useful as this will be after the publication of the new Health White 
Paper, which is due in December/January. 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

Quality Services is a corporate value of the Council. 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 
 

Financial Implications  None 

Legal Implications  None  

Staffing Implications  None 

Administrative Implications  None  

Risk Assessment  No uncertainties and/or constraints 

  
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
 Not applicable 
 

7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Work Programme 
 
 

Agenda Item 12Page 71



 
QUALITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

30 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Documents 
consulted 

Date / 
File 
Ref 

Report Author Section 
and 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
  Adrian Gowan 

(01322) 
343418 

MAIT 
EXEC 

N/A 

 

Agenda Item 12 Page 72



APPENDIX A 
 

QUALITY SERVICES DRAFT WORK PLAN 
 
 
 

 
 

November 2010 
 

 
March 2011 

 
 
June 2011 

 
 
September 2011 

Second Quarter 
Performance Outturn 
figures 

Third Quarter 
performance outturn 
figures 

End of Year 
performance update 

Benefits Service 
update 

Corporate Complaints 
2010/2011 

Corporate Complaints 
2010/2011 

Corporate 
Complaints 
2010/2011 

Corporate 
Complaints 
2011/2012 

Web Site update 
Local Children’s Trust 
update 

  

Acacia Hall/ Fairfield 
Pool update 

Youth Council 
response to Place 
Survey 

  

 Darent Valley Hospital 
Chief Executive 

  

 Update on Garden 
Waste Service 

  

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
2

P
a
g
e
 7

3



P
a

g
e
 7

4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2010
	6 FORWARD PLAN
	7 Action Points Arising from the Committee Meeting held on 7 September 2010
	Action Points APPENDIX A

	8 Acacia Hall/Fairfield Pool Update
	Acacia Fairfield Update APPENDIX A

	9 Benefits Service - Progress against Improvement Plan
	Benefits Improvement Plan APPENDIX A

	10 Performance Updates
	Performance Update APPENDIX A

	11 Corporate Complaints 2010/11
	Corporate Complaints APPENDIX A

	12 Quality Services Committee Work Plan
	Work Plan APPENDIX A


